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GHz and 2.1 GHz Bands (WT Docket No. 02—353).

Summary: The Commission will consider a Report and Order
concerning licensing, technical and competitive bidding rules
for spectrum at 1710-1755 MHz and 2110-2155 MHz allo-
cated for advanced wireless services (AWS).

Additional information concerning
this meeting may be obtained from
Audrey Spivack or David Fiske, Office
of Media Relations, (202) 418—0500;
TTY 1-888-835-5322.

Audio/Video coverage of the meeting
will be broadcast live over the Internet
from the FCC’s Audio/Video Events
Web page at http://www.fcc.gov/
realaudio.

For a fee this meeting can be viewed
live over George Mason University’s
Capitol Connection. The Capitol
Connection also will carry the meeting
live via the Internet. To purchase these
services call (703) 993-3100 or go to
http://www.capitolconnection.gmu.edu.
Audio and video tapes of this meeting
can be purchased from CACI
Productions, 341 Victory Drive,
Herndon, VA 20170, (03) 834—1470, Ext.
19; Fax (703) 834—0111.

Copies of materials adopted at this
meeting can be purchased from the
FCC’s duplicating contractor, Qualex
International (202) 863—2893; Fax (202)
863-2898; TTY (202) 863—-2897. These
copies are available in paper format and
alternative media, including large print/
type; digital disk; and audio tape.
Qualex International may be reached by
e-mail at Qualexint@aol.com.

Federal Communications Commission.
Marlene H. Dortch,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 03-26418 Filed 10-15-03; 2:18 pm]
BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION
[Docket No. 03-11]

Deans Overseas Shippers, Inc., and
Sharon Stephenson Deans—Possible
Violations of Sections 8(a), 10(a)(1) and
19 of the Shipping Act of 1984, as
Amended, and the Commission’s
Regulations at 46 CFR Parts 515 and
520; Deans International Shipping Co.,
Ltd.—Application for License as an
Ocean Transportation Intermediary;
Order of Investigation and Hearing

Notice is given that on October 8,
2003, the Federal Maritime Commission
served an Order of Investigation and
Hearing on Deans Overseas Shippers,
Inc. (“Deans Overseas’), Sharon

Stephenson Deans (‘“Ms. Deans”), and
Deans International Shipping Co., Ltd.
(“Deans International’’). Deans
Overseas, incorporated in New York, is
doing business as a household goods
mover in the United States export
trades, primarily to Caribbean
destinations. Ms. Deans is the chief
executive officer and owns 100% of
Deans Overseas’ capital stock. Deans
Overseas operated as a non-vessel-
operating common carrier (“NVOCC”)
prior to revocation of its tariff effective
September 1996, when its bond was not
renewed. Deans International was
incorporated in New York on June 28,
2002. Ms. Deans serves as chief
executive officer of Deans International
and owns 100% of the company’s stock.
Ms. Deans has filed an application with
the Commission seeking a freight
forwarder license on behalf of Deans
International.

It appears that, from at least October
2000 to the present, Deans Overseas and
its principal, Ms. Deans, provided
NVOCGC services from the United States
to destinations in the Caribbean without
first obtaining an ocean transportation
intermediary (“OTI”) license, a bond or
other surety, and publishing a tariff
open for public inspection. It also
appears that Deans Overseas, through
Ms. Deans, misrepresented itself as the
actual cargo owner in order to enter into
service contracts with ocean common
carriers and to receive transportation for
property at rates more favorable than
those published in the carriers’ tariffs.

This proceeding therefore seeks to
determine: (1) Whether Deans Overseas
Shippers, Inc., and or Sharon
Stephenson Deans violated sections 8(a)
and 19 of the Shipping Act of 1984
(“1984 Act”) and the Commission’s
regulations at 46 CFR parts 515 and 520
by knowingly and willfully performing
NVOCGC services without having
obtained an OTI license from the
Commission, without having filed a
bond or other financial responsibility,
and without having published a tariff;
(2) whether Deans Overseas Shippers,
Inc., and/or Sharon Stephenson Deans
violated section 10(a)(1) of the 1984 Act
by knowingly and willfully obtaining
transportation for property at less than
the rates or charges that otherwise
would be applicable by the unjust or

unfair device or means of unlawfully
entering into service contracts; (3)
whether the application of Deans
International Shipping Co., Ltd., for an
OTI license to operate as a freight
forwarder should be granted or denied;
(4) whether, in the event violations of
sections 8(a), 10(a)(1) and 19 of the 1984
Act or the Commission’s regulations at
46 CFR parts 515 and 520 are found,
civil penalties should be assessed and,
if so, the amount; and (5) whether, in
the event violations are found, an
appropriate cease and desist order
should be issued.

The full text of the Order may be
viewed on the Commission’s Home Page
at http//www.fmc.gov or at the Office of
the Secretary, Room 1046, 800 N.
Capitol Street, NW., Washington, DC.
Any person may file a petition for leave
to intervene in accordance with 46 CFR
502.72.

Dated: October 10, 2003.
Bryant L. VanBrakle,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 03—26236 Filed 10-16—03; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6730-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Ocean Transportation Intermediary
License Revocations

The Federal Maritime Commission
hereby gives notice that the following
Ocean Transportation Intermediary
licenses have been revoked pursuant to
section 19 of the Shipping Act of 1984
(46 U.S.C. app. 1718) and the
regulations of the Commission
pertaining to the licensing of Ocean
Transportation Intermediaries, effective
on the corresponding date shown below:

License Number: 14941N.

Name: Air Freight Consolidators
International, Inc. dba ACI Line.

Address: 1251 E. Dyer Road, Suite
200, Santa Ana, CA 92705.

Date Revoked: August 14, 2003.

Reason: Surrendered license
voluntarily.

License Number: 3235F.

Name: All Points Freight Forwarding
Inc.

Address: 28 Taylor’s Bills Road,
Manalapan, NJ 07726.

Date Revoked: September 20, 2003.
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